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Borrego Water District 
AGENDA 

Special Meeting of the  
Board of Directors 
February 15, 2011 

9:00 A.M. – 10:30 A.M. 
806 Palm Canyon Drive 

Borrego Springs, CA  92004 
 

I. OPENING PROCEDURES 
 

A. Call to Order 
B. Pledge of Allegiance 
C. Roll Call 
D. Comments from the Public and Requests for Future Agenda Items (comments will be limited to 

3 minutes) 
E. Comments from Directors and Requests for Future Agenda Items 
     

II. CURRENT BUSINESS MATTERS 
 

A. Briefing by Jack Simes of the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation on the Southeast California Regional 
Basin Study (page 2-29) 
 

B. Discussion and possible action on agreements with William Mills 
 
C. Discussion and possible action regarding staff report and Due Diligence Committee report on 

forecasted cash flow of district, line of credit availability, and margin-of-safety reserve 
requirements. (page 30) 

 
D. Discussion and possible action regarding Capital Allocation Committee report on auditor’s 

special report of cash expenditures of district. 
 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding Professional Advisory Committee report on RFP and 
RFQ processes. (page 31-44) 

 
F. Discussion of and possible action regarding MOTION 2011-02-01: regarding a vote to 

authorize the Professional Advisory Committee to retain advisors to assess and clarify 
the economic and California water law aspects of the district’s present land/water 
credits purchase program and strategy to address the overdraft. (page 45-46) 

 
G. Discussion of and possible action regarding MOTION 2011-02-02: regarding a vote to enable 

the Professional Advisory Committee to retain advisors for the purpose of developing a plan to 
address the district’s present financial situation. (page 47) 

 
H. Discussion of policy 2003-5-1, as amended 01/12/11: directors and officers 

responsibilities and limitations. 
 

I. Discussion of agenda items for Board regular meeting scheduled for February 23, 2011 
 

J. Consideration and approval of RESOLUTION 2011-02-01 Resolution of the Board of 
Directors of the Borrego Water District revising the schedule of regular meetings. (page 48-
49) 

III. CLOSING PROCEDURE 
A. Adjournment  The next Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors is scheduled for February 

23, 2011. 
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Hi Jerry,

Below is a set of somewhat more complete questions that I have for the BoR 
presentation on the 15th:

1) In the draft BoR Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), I noticed there was 
no mention of the recognition of the in-kind services contributed by BWD for its 
portion of the cost of the study. Only the $12,500 cash contribution for up-front 
planning costs was mentioned. Is it possible, as part of the MOU, to explicitly 
recognize the in-kind contributions from BWD and to specify that BoR will not 
require any additional cash contributions from BWD for the completion of this 
study?

2) Depending on which water resources or legal water law expert one talks to, 
the range of probabilities of finding dependable, potable supplies of excess 
Colorado River water in the region and piping this water for recharge or water 
banking to the Borrego Valley Groundwater Basin range from 1.00 (certainty) to 
zero (implausible and improbable). That such a wide range of expert opinion 
exists recommends the BoR study. What data do you already possess that 
suggests a probability of locating excess regional supply that can be 
economically transported to the Valley's basin to augment its supply?

3) Locating a regional supply of water for supply augmentation to BWD is only 
the first part of a long process. If such supply was located in the region through 
the conclusion of this study in 2012/13, low long do you estimate it might take to 
complete the engineering, legal and economic analyses and permitting and 
political processes necessary before the first drop of water was ever received 
into the basin?

4) Locating a regional supply of water for supply augmentation to BWD is only 
the first part of a long process. If such supply was located in the region through 
the conclusion of this study in 2012/13, low much do you estimate it might cost to 
complete the engineering, legal and economic analyses and permitting and 
political processes necessary before the first drop of water was ever received 
into the basin?

5) Do you have any data as to the engineering, planning, and construction costs 
of building a pipeline to the basin (e.g cost per mile), say from IID or from 
SDCWA for storage? Do you have any examples of such pipelines in California 
that have been built without Federal grants or low-cost financing from the State? 
That is, do you have any documented case studies of water districts that have 
financed such projects without Federal or State grants or financing sources?

Sent 02/10/11
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6) Do you have data as to the annual or life cycle O&M costs of a completed 
pipeline, one that traverses one of the most active earthquake regions in the 
United States?

7) Does the BoR have the hydrological data to project how long it would take for 
the first drop of water for recharge or for water banking to reach the upper aquifer 
of the basin, once a pipeline to transport this supply is constructed and water 
starts flowing?

8) Does the BoR have available or does it know of any documents pertaining to 
California water law as it relates to recharge basins or basins that are used for 
water banking where water is stored for use by another water district or 
appropriator.

9) In my discussions with California water law experts and with other water 
districts in California that are either recharging their basins with supply from 
outside the basin or storing water for another appropriators use, my 
understanding is that in each case, some form of court-mediated rights 
determination is required for all pumpers of the basin as each pumper must pay 
their proportionate share of the costs for recharge or storage for withdrawals in 
excess of what they have a determined right to withdraw. Is this also your 
understanding?

10) My understanding from some of these conversations is also that for financing 
to build the pipelines necessary to transport water from outside the basin for the 
purposes of recharge or storage, that prior to the approval of any such financing, 
rights to withdrawals by pumpers of the receiving basin must be determined so 
as to ascertain proportionate share of the project costs. Is this also your 
understanding?

11) If you were an elected director of the BWD, would you place the location of 
water supply in the region that could be economically transported to the Valley's 
basin for recharge or for storage purposes, the ability to go through the permitting 
and political processes for approvals of a pipeline, the ability to secure financing, 
in a reasonable time before the basin's upper aquifer is dewatered w/in 50-years, 
as a slam-dunk - that is, 100% assured and therefore should be considered the 
foundational element of a strategy to address the overdraft of the Borrego Valley 
Groundwater basin?

-- 
Lyle Brecht

Sent 02/10/11
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Statement of Cash Position - BWD as of 01/03/11

Cash on Hand as of 01/03/11 $901,926
Less: FY’11 Cash Obligations not in budget
Lift Station $227,605
Montezuma Pipeline Replacement $40,000
Brian Polley $49,700
Viking Ranch Purchase - Execution $25,000
Viking Ranch Purchase - Closing $50,000
Club Circle Golf Course (estimated loses) $49,317
Montesoro Well Purchase $70,000
USGS Study $135,000
Land purchases legal expenses $20,000

Total FY’11 Cash Obligations as of 01/03/11 $666,622

Cash on Hand Less Total Cash Obligations for FY’11 $235,304

Cash Available from Operations if FY’11 (Kim’s estimate) $229,059

Estimated Unrestricted Cash on Hand at Year End June 
30, 2011

$464,363
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The Borrego Water District (“BWD”) is a small public water and wastewater district 
serving approximately 2,000 customers located in Borrego Springs, California. BWD is 
the only appropriator that withdraws water from the unajudicated Borrego Valley 
Groundwater Basin, which is in overdraft. The USGS estimates that average annual 
recharge is 4,000 af/y and average annual withdrawals are 20,000 af/y (2010 estimates). 
BWD withdraws less than 15% of this total; three overlyers use approximately 15% of 
these withdrawals for recreational purposes (golf courses); and overlyers use about 70%  
of these withdrawals for agricultural purposes. 

In the past few years, BWD has been paying agricultural users to fallow farmland in 
exchange for “water credits.” To date, it has agreed to purchase or is contemplating 
purchasing with Cocopah, water credits that represent the fallowing of approximately 
2,136 af/y of overdraft withdrawals from the basin for about $4,900,000, not including 
interest expense ($750K Rudy Monica property; $1.5M Viking Ranch; $2.5M. Cocopah). 
The district plans to recoup the economic cost of this program through the sale of water 
credits to developers at a profit (e.g. if water credits were sold @ $5,500/credit, Cocopah 
would return $6,957,500 to the district for a cost of $2,500,000 (plus interest expense).

The Board of BWD would like advice regarding three due diligence questions:

• Are there compelling economic or other arguments why the district should 
complete the Cocopah Nurseries purchase? [Note: the district presently has a 6-
month option that expires on May 29, 2011 to purchase water credits 
representing 1,265 af/y withdrawals, 230 acres, and 2 deep wells for $2.5M.] 

• Should the district continue with its present water credits purchase program?

• If so, with any modifications; if not, what are the alternatives?

Study Deliverable: A brief that outlines: (1) your initial findings; (2) recommendations to 
the board regarding the three questions we want answered at this time; (3) the economic 
and other analyses you used to reach these conclusions; and (4) additional questions/
issues that you believe may need more study for addressing the overdraft of the basin.

RFP Response: Please respond with a proposal that outlines (a) your due diligence 
process; (b) the documents you require from us; (c) how quickly you can provide an 
initial assessment; and (d) an estimated not-to-exceed cost for your services.

Proposal Due Date: The proposal is due no later than 2:00 PM Pacific Time, Friday, 
February 4, 2011 via email to diana[at]borregowd[dot]org.

Proposal Selection Process: Proposal Selection Process: The board has established 
a committee to oversee the selection process and to make a recommendation of advisor. 
The board wishes to start immediately after selecting an advisor and to complete the 
deliverable as soon as possible. Any questions should be addressed to Director Lyle 
Brecht at 410.963.8680 (cell) or LBrecht[at]gmail[dot]com. 

BORREGO WATER DISTRICT REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)
FOR A DUE DILIGENCE STUDY

Approved by the Board! Wednesday, January 26, 2011! ! ! ! Page 1 of 1
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In November 2010, a new majority of the Borrego Water District (BWD) board was elected. Two 

weeks before this new board took over, in Special Meetings closed to the public, the old board 
and the its then general manager (GM) agreed to two agricultural land water credits deals. The 

first transaction involved purchasing land and water credits from the Viking Ranch. The first the 
public learned of this transaction was through a press release: http://www.borregowd.org/

uploads/PRESS_RELEASE_11.2010.pdf. When a newly elected member of the board asked if 
he could review the due diligence file, he was told by the GM who negotiated the deal (and who 

has subsequently left the district) that “no due diligence was needed as the district was getting 
valuable water credits and the land came along for free.”

The second land and water credits transaction was to pay $150,000 for an option to purchase 
land and water credits from Cocopah Nurseries for $2,500,000. A summary description of this 

transaction is contained in the RFP: http://www.borregowd.org/uploads/
Cocopah_due_diligence_RFP.pdf. When a member of the new board inquired as to the 

business case for this transaction, he was told: “if water credits were sold to developers @ 

$5,500/credit, Cocopah would return $6,957,500 to the district for a cost of the $2,500,000 
purchase price.”

The creation and purchase of water credits is part of a strategy to deal with the overdraft 
developed by the previous board and its GM. The strategy and its financial cost to the district 
over the past three years is outlined in a live RFQ that seeks advisors to the District, including 
California Water law attorneys who can assist the new board with some of the general legal 
questions concerning the overdraft contained in the RFQ that impact on strategy and the cost 
for developing a plan to address the overdraft. You may also wish to consider submitting a 
proposal for this: http://www.borregowd.org/uploads/Borrego_Water_District_Advisors_RFQ.pdf. 

The Cocopah Nurseries land and water credits purchase is problematical just on the basis of its 
cost to the district, given the districtʼs current financial situation. However, the Cocopah deal 

offers the opportunity to better understand some of the water law issues that may also affect this 
transaction. For example, below are hypotheses regarding water credits that may need to be 

affirmed or falsified:

Water credits may be a potentially useful bankable means to satisfy San Diego Countyʼs 

requirement for mitigation. For example, they appear to be a useful means to move 
small development projects to high water use agricultural lands. Also, claims are that the 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION THAT MAY BE HELPFUL FOR RESPONDING TO RFP 
FOR A DUE DILIGENCE STUDY ON THE PROPOSED COCOPAH NURSERIES 

WATER CREDITS PURCHASE BY THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT

DRAFT 1.3  Lyle Brecht for Professional Advisory Committee Wednesday, February 2, 2011"  Page 1 of 2
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County may not adequately enforce its Mitigation program. The districtʼs water credits 

program is enforced so fallowing of agricultural lands actually occurs;

It is unlikely that involving the district in land purchase transactions to create water 

credits as a means of demand management to extend the life of the aquifer is an 
economically advantageous means for the district to accomplish this end. Originally, the 

special water district was formed to prevent exportation of the basinʼs water to 
agricultural users outside the Borrego Valley. Additionally, San Diego Countyʼs present 

mitigation policy makes it difficult for new pumpers to enter the basin. Despite these 
barriers, some claim that as long as the basin remains unajudicated with unmetered 

wells, there is some economic risk associated with the districtʼs water credits program 
and the assumption that the life of the aquifer can be extended for a reasonable cost. 

For example, under the districtʼs water credits program, ratepayers, who are responsible 
for less than 15% of annual withdrawals, are being asked to pay 100% of the upfront 

costs for extending the life of the aquifer for the other users who withdraw 85% of the 
water;

Purchasing water credits for supply augmentation is a failed strategy for the district. That 
is because no defined water rights are conveyed with the purchase transaction of 

overlying land and the creation of water credits.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION THAT MAY BE HELPFUL FOR RESPONDING TO RFP 
FOR A DUE DILIGENCE STUDY ON THE PROPOSED COCOPAH NURSERIES 

WATER CREDITS PURCHASE BY THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT
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Committee Meeting: Tuesday, February 1, 2011, 9:00AM - 10:30AM

Attendees: Directors Beth Hart and Lyle Brecht; Jim Melvin, Ray Delahay, Interim GM Jerry 

Rolwing, Dennis Dickinson, Rebecca Falk, James Rickard.

DISCUSSION ITEMS for Professional Advisory Committee (“PAC”)

A. For implementing Motion to seek advisors for the district approved by the Board 01/26/11

 ACTION ITEMS:

The committee discussed and approved the draft RFQ, with modifications, to go live on the 

districtʼs website http://www.borregowd.org/uploads/Borrego_Water_District_Advisors_RFQ.pdf.

NOTES: 

Dennis Ciocca the districtʼs investment banker from Stern Brothers (http://
www.sternbrothers.com/) put us in touch w/  Doug Dove, President of Bartle & Wells (http://

www.bartlewells.com/) considered one of the top financial advisory firms for water districts in 
the state of CA. They were actually BWDʼs financial advisors in the 1980ʼs for a bond issue 

then. We sent Doug a draft of the Management Consulting RFQ. The next day we spent an 
hour discussing the present predicament of the district, potential steps forward, and whether 

his firm would be interested in responding to the RFQ. In summary:

The RFQ as written was perceived as an attractive mechanism to generate interest in 

assisting the district. His firm will respond;

The district must make immediate decisions to live w/in its present revenues to be able 

to make a viable case for higher rates;

The Viking Ranch debt for water credits purchase alone may require higher rates. This 

transaction may be problematic for the voters agreeing to a rate increase;

The district must move w/ speed to determine water rights for pumpers of the basin, but 

not before it gets its own house in order and has the finances to pursue this necessary 
strategy. Even if the district ultimately imports water, it must establish who has rights to 

withdraw a determined amount of water from the basin. All water users must pay for the 
solution, not just the districtʼs ratepayers.

P R O F E S S I O N A L  A D V I S O R Y  C O M M I T T E E  N O T E S
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We spoke w/ Sanjay Gaur from Raftelis Financial Consulting (Pasadena local office). 

Raftelis Financial Consulting (http://www.raftelis.com/) is considered one of the premier 
financial advisors providing financial models and rate studies for water districts nationally:

Based on the draft RFQ, he would like to assist the district w/ its challenges;

The first order of business of the new board should be to seek outside legal advice as to 

whether the district can cancel any of the agreements that were made by the old board & 
GM in the last few weeks before the new board took over;

The district needs to do a financial model ASAP to get a handle on where to make cuts 
in its present O&M budget to reduce expenses to match revenues and to project out how 

much rates need to rise and over what time period;

As soon as the district gets its finances in order and has access to the public credit 

markets again, it must enter a process to determine who has what rights to withdraw 
specific amounts of water from the basin and develop a plan to address the overdraft;

A strategy of doing nothing or relying entirely on importation schemes is too risky. The 
district should look at a water budget rate structure analysis to see if it is possible to live 

w/in the basinʼs recharge rate.

Professor Joseph Sax (http://www.law.berkeley.edu/php-programs/faculty/facultyProfile.php?

facID=141), considered one of the top water law experts in CA was provided some basic 
information about water use in the basin and asked the nine legal questions in the draft 

Management RFQ. His advice is as follows:

What agriculture is doing in their overdraft of your basin is illegal under existing CA state 

law as it abridges the rights of all other pumpers. However, the state regulatory 
apparatus refuses to enforce its own laws. The only remedy is to use the courts to 

determine water rights or to just import water for the districtʼs use and let the basin 
become dewatered;

It is highly unlikely that a prudent strategy for the district would be to rely on the 
importation of an over allotment of Colorado River water to recharge the basin. It is 

unlikely this would be a dependable source of water in the future;

P R O F E S S I O N A L  A D V I S O R Y  C O M M I T T E E  N O T E S
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Everyone using water from the basin must be required to share in the cost of maintaining 

the basin. This is not something the districtʼs ratepayers can do on their own. A court 
process to determine water rights addresses this requirement for equal cost-sharing 

among all users.

“I donʼt think my consulting work is in your range. I charge $750/hr with a $10,000 

minimum.” He recommended two water law attorneys in Sacramento that he thought we 
might be able to afford.

Andrew (Andy) Schlange (former GM of Chino Basin Municipal Water District [http://
www.ieua.org/], The Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority [http://www.sawpa.org/] and the 

Eastern Municipal Water District [http://www.emwd.org/]) put us in touch w/ Mark 
Wildermuth, President of Wildermuth Environmental (http://

www.wildermuthenvironmental.com/) who are considered one of the most knowledgable 
consultants in southern CA regarding water rights, water credits, and groundwater 

management planning. Mark, in turn, put us in touch w/ two attorneyʼs specialized in CA 
water law that he works with. Mark was also familiar w/ the water credits purchase program 

here in Borrego. In summary, from a number of conversations with these sources:

Water credits may be a potentially useful bankable means to satisfy the Countyʼs 

requirement for mitigation. For example, they appear to be a useful means to move 
small development projects to high water use agricultural lands;

It is unlikely that involving the district in land purchase transactions to create water 
credits as a means of demand management to extend the life of the aquifer is an 

economically advantageous means for the district to accomplish this end;

Purchasing water credits for supply augmentation is a failed strategy for the district. That 

is because no defined water rights are conveyed with the purchase transaction of 
overlying land and the creation of water credits. 

Andrew (Andy) Schlange also put us in touch w/ Michael (Mike) OʼConnor, President of 
Michael OʼConnor & Associates. Mike is presently the Executive Director of the Salton Sea 

Authority (http://www.saltonsea.ca.gov/), a five agency Joint Powers Agency (Riverside and 
Imperial Counties, Coachella Valley Water District, Imperial Irrigation District and the Torres 

Martinez Indian Tribe) that is responsible for the restoration of the Salton Sea and has 
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served as City Manager for Ontario (http://www.ci.ontario.ca.us/), Coachella (http://

www.coachella.org/) and Lomita (http://www.lomita.com/cityhall/):

The district is in serious financial trouble. The credit markets will cut the district off from 

issuing new debt (this was before the Stern Brothers report was sent to the board) and 
without acting quickly to get its use of cash under control will loose credibility with the 

public. This situation must be addressed and quickly. I can help you.

The Due Diligence Committee had a half-hour teleconference with Glenn Reiter, President 

of Glenn M. Reiter & Associates (http://www.gmrfinance.com/). Glenn Reiter & Associates 
have had three successive contracts to provide financial advice to the district for FY2009, 

FY 2010, and FY2011 (YTD). To date, the district has been billed $40,000 for this advice. 
Presently, there is approximately $39,000 left on the live contracts and no rate study has yet 

been completed:

The primary real cost driver for the district is currently the overdraft situation of the basin. 

The district must come up with a plan that addresses the overdraft, include the cost of 
this plan in its capital budget, and sell the plan to the community;

Without a workable plan to address the overdraft that can be funded and implemented, 
property values in the Valley will plummet. A workable plan that has funding can increase 

property values quickly. The economics for any plan and the alternatives must be done;

The ratepayers must not be asked to pay the entire cost of any plan to address the 

overdraft. Reiter recommends a special tax on all undeveloped parcels of land to help 
pay for this cost;

Having a good 5-year CIP will be required to assess the districtʼs need for a rate 
increase;

Having a better handle on the O&M budget is necessary to assess the districtʼs need for 
a rate increase;

Reiter, as the districtʼs auditors and investment banker also claim, may not have been 
kept fully in the loop about the districtʼs current financial situation.

The Due Diligence Committee is working w/ Jerry & staff to develop an 18-month cash flow 
forecast that hopefully will be available to discuss for the February 15th board meeting.
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Committee Meeting: Tuesday, February 8, 2011, 9:00AM - 10:30AM

ATTENDEES: Directors Beth Hart and Lyle Brecht; Jim Melvin, Ray Delahay, Dennis Dickinson, 
James Rickard, Richard Walker, Ray Schindler.

DISCUSSION ITEMS: Implementing Motions to seek advisors approved by the Board 01/26/11

 ACTION ITEMS: (a) To chunk questions that require legal advice and ask the best qualified 

legal counsel to provide answers to each set of questions rather than picking only one attorney 
to provide all the advice at this juncture; (b) Submit a motion for the boardʼs February 15, 2011 

Special meeting for retaining necessary legal advice.

NOTES: The following proposing respondents were provided the RFP approved by the board 

January 26, 2011 (http://www.borregowd.org/uploads/Cocopah_due_diligence_RFP.pdf); 
Supplementary Information to the Cocopah RFP dated February 2, 2011 (see pdf), and the RFQ 

(http:// www.borregowd.org/uploads/Borrego_Water_District_Advisors_RFQ.pdf) approved by 
the Professional Advisory Committee February 1, 2011 that was initiated by the board approved 

motion on January 26, 2011 for the PAC to gather data from potential advisors:

Referred by Professor Joseph Sax (see PAC notes_2013111.pdf): Stuart Somach, Somach 

Simmons & Dunn (Sacramento). David Aladjem, Downey Brand (Sacramento).

Referred by Mark Wildermuth of Wildermuth Environmental (see PAC notes_2013111.pdf): Jill 

Willis, Best Best & Krieger (Los Angeles). Tom Bunn, Lagerlof Senecal Gosney & Kruse 
(Pasadena).

Referred by John Delaney (John referred us to David Osias. Jan is his partner) Jan Driscoll, 
Allen Matkins (San Diego).

In summary, based on written proposals and phone conferences with respondents:

The Cocopah land/water credits transaction may be problematical: (a) without an economically 

and legally vetted plan to address the overdraft there is no direct way to determine whether this 
transaction has a strategic value for the district; (b) some of the assumptions the transaction is 

based on are not valid or cannot be shown to be valid without additional research regarding 
California water law, data about the basin, information regarding overlyers and their land use, 

etc; (c) the district acting as market maker for the purchase and resale of water credits for a 
profit may not be a legally sanctioned use of ratepayer funds;

P R O F E S S I O N A L  A D V I S O R Y  C O M M I T T E E  N O T E S
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The USGS study process is too important for the district to treat the engagement as an 

engineering black box. The district should actively ensure that the relationship provides reliable 
data necessary to make decisions regarding a plan to address the overdraft;

Relying on importation as the plan to address the overdraft may be too risky, both economically 
and legally. Even if importation was accomplishable, this may still require rights for withdrawals 

to be established for basin pumpers as all users would be required to pay their proportionate 
share to replenish of the basin;

The district must decide on whether withdrawals from the Clark Lake aquifer for its use are 
either practicable and economical once and for all, rather than leaving this strategic element an 

unknown in its plan to address the overdraft.

Some of the legal questions necessary to formulate good policy include the following:

• Does California State law prohibit the overdraft of a basin and if so, who is empowered to 
enforce the state statute? 

• Are there any state or federal agencies that oversee the overdraft of a basin and what if any 
power do they have to correct the matter?

• Are there any public rights or other doctrines that can be pressed to restrict over-drafting?  Do 
pumpers with water rights have an unobstructed right to withdrawal any amount of water 

when a basin is in overdraft?

• Is there any regulation(s) requiring that overlyers be metered?  By what process would a local 

water district require all basin pumpers be metered? 

• Who can apply a pump tax or replenishment fee and by what authority? 

• Is adjudication, voluntary or court ordered, the best solution to the overdraft of a basin with a 
small number of pumpers?

• Does the State Park, which surrounds and is part of the basin, have any power to control 
overdraft if it adversely affects the flora and fauna within the Parkʼs boundaries?

• There is some possibility in the future to import water to the basin. What are the legal 
consequences of becoming a replenishment basin?

• Are there statutory or regulatory considerations if the basin were used for storage of water for 
another entity?

P R O F E S S I O N A L  A D V I S O R Y  C O M M I T T E E  N O T E S
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Purpose of RFQ: The purpose of this RFQ is to identify professionals including: legal 
advisors (district counsel and California water law attorneys), auditors, financial advisors, 

strategy and planning advisors, and management consultants who are capable and 
willing to provide ongoing advice to the Borrego Water District.

Background: The Borrego Water District (“BWD”) is a small public water and 
wastewater district serving approximately 2,000 customers in beautiful Borrego Springs, 

California, a retirement and resort community located about 70 miles NE of San Diego 
and surrounded by the Anza-Borrego Desert State Park.  

In FY2010, the districtʼs revenues were approximately $3,000,000 and its O&M 
budgeted expenses were about $3,800,000, of which depreciation was over $600,000. 

Water and sewer rates have remained stable for the past 10-years and are lower than 
those of surrounding communities. Present rates are based on service area/

improvement district (SA/ID) basis. Only ID #4 has COPʼs outstanding that are 
exclusively a pledge of that IDʼs revenues.

BWD is the only appropriator of groundwater from the unajudicated Borrego Valley 
Groundwater Basin, which has been in overdraft since 1945. Present overdraft is 

estimated at more than 16,000 acre-feet/year (AF/y), if the natural annual recharge is 
around 4,000 AF/y. BWD accounts for about 3,000 AF/y or less than 15% of annual 

withdrawals. Unmetered recreational use by overlyers (3 golf courses) annually account 
for about 15% of the annual withdrawals and unmetered agricultural use by overlyers 

accounts for about 70% of annual withdrawals. Preliminary results from current USGS 
models project a complete dewatering of the upper aquifer within 50-years. Presently, 

there is uncertainty whether economically extractable potable water will be available 
from the middle and lower aquifers once the upper aquifer is dewatered.

Strategy to Address the Overdraft: In 2002, the districtʼs plan to address the overdraft 
based on the assumption that “obtaining water from state projects and transporting it to 

the Borrego Valley was prohibitively expensive and much more expensive than fallowing 
agricultural lands.”1 In 2008 a new strategy was developed that assumed that fallowing 

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION (RFQ) FOR  ADVICE 
TO THE BORREGO WATER DISTRICT 
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agricultural lands was insufficient and building a pipeline to import water to the Valley to 

ameliorate the overdraft problem is required. Under this new strategy, the following 
elements were initiated:

The United States Geological Survey (USGS) was asked to develop a model that 
can predict various fallowing and importation schemesʼ estimated affect water table 

levels in the basin. This requires the USGS to: (a) estimate present levels of 
overdraft; (b) estimate the natural annual recharge rate for the basinʼs watershed; (c) 

determine the best locations for new wells; and (d) provide a tool for selling storage 
space in the aquifer. This three-year half-million dollar study will be completed in 

October 2011 and results from the study will be published in 2012-13 (BWDʼs cost for 
this study is approximately $350,000);

The Bureau of Reclamation (BoR) was asked to perform a study to determine 
whether sufficient water is available regionally for importation to establish a recharge 

basin. This almost million dollar two-year study should be completed in 2012-13 
(BWDʼs cost for this study is in-kind services);

Efforts were made to secure federal funding to investigate the potential viability of the 
importation of water from the nearby Clark Lake aquifer for augmenting BWDʼs water 

supply;

The 2002 Groundwater Management Planʼs directive to fallow agricultural lands was 

implemented through a fallowing through water credits purchase program to extend 
the life of the aquifer beyond its projected life.

Concerns with Strategy: Some public concerns regarding the above strategy include: 

(a) In 1982 the USGS projected 500-years of water in the aquifer, now it projects the 

aquifer will be dewatered in about 50-years. Why should the public believe the USGS 
now? 

(b) The BoR study, if any dependable regional water source is available to replenish the 
basin, assumes that some water authority other than the district is willing to pay for a 

pipeline to store water in the basin; 
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(c) The quantity and quality of the water in the Clark Lake aquifer is still not fully known, 

a pipeline and water treatment plant may not be economically feasible, and this 
pipeline may need to cross State Park land; and

(d) Acting as market maker for the fallowing for water credits purchase program may not 
be economically fair for ratepayers. Ratepayersʼ share of use of the aquifer is less 

than 15% of annual withdrawals but they are being asked to pay 100% of the upfront 
costs of the district being a market maker for the water credit purchase program.

Present Situation: In November 2010, three new board directors were elected. Of 
concern is the apparent immediate cost of the present strategy to the district and affect 

its finances. Historically, the district has produced operating surpluses with its present 
rate structure (e.g. 2005 +$387,412, 2006 +$594,534, 2007 +$315,031, 2008 +

$112,460). However, in FY2009 and FY2010 collectively, the district produced a 
$1,100,000 operating loss under this strategy and related capital spending decisions. 

The district presently anticipates a $400,000 operating loss for FY2011. 

During the past three years, the district consumed, through December 31, 2010, 

approximately $6,400,000 of the $7,400,000 cash reserves available at the beginning of 
FY2008, and projects cash consumption for the remaining FY2011 of more than 

$600,000 that may leave less than $400,000 cash available to the district at year-end on 
June 30, 2011. Also, future cash requirements for two of the capital projects may cost 

the district an additional $3,000,000 or so in cash (e.g. 10 annual payments of $70,000 
to complete purchase of well #12 at Montesoro in FYʼ09 and approximately $2.5M P&I 

payments over life of the loan to complete purchase of Viking Ranch water credits in 
FYʼ10).

Recently, the districtʼs long-term investment banker has indicated that the district is not 
presently able to raise funds in the private capital markets. Both its investment banker 

and its auditors have recommended that the district hold up on a rate study until some 
decisions are made as to: (a) how it allocates G&A to its operating activities; (b) how it 

intends to build its rate structure (e.g. based on water and sewer or on SA/ID); and (c) 
establishes a capital improvements plan that more adequately and clearly projects its 

near and medium term capital needs over the next 5 to 10-years:

REQUEST FOR QUOTATION (RFQ) FOR  ADVICE 
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Some Questions Regarding Developing A Strategy to Address the Overdraft: 

• Does California State law prohibit the overdraft of a basin and if so, who is 
empowered to enforce the state statute? 

• Are there any state or federal agencies that oversee the overdraft of a basin and what 
if any power do they have to correct the matter?

• Are there any public rights or other doctrines that can be pressed to restrict over-
drafting?  Do pumpers with water rights have an unobstructed right to withdrawal any 

amount of water when a basin is in overdraft?

• Is there any regulation(s) requiring that overlyers be metered?  By what process 

would a local water district require all basin pumpers be metered? 

• Who can apply a pump tax or replenishment fee and by what authority? 

• Is adjudication, voluntary or court ordered, the best solution to the overdraft of a basin 
with a small number of pumpers?

• Does the State Park, which surrounds and is part of the basin, have any power to 
control overdraft if it adversely affects the flora and fauna within the Parkʼs 

boundaries?

• There is some possibility in the future to import water to the basin. What are the legal 

consequences of becoming a replenishment basin?

• Are there statutory or regulatory considerations if the basin were used for storage of 

water for another entity?

• Advice Requested: The district seeks timely advice regarding the immediate 

challenge of a potential cash crunch in the near term. However, without an 
economically-based strategy to address the overdraft, improving cash flow through 

tightening operations and a rate hike, etc., may provide only short-term relief. A few 
questions that the Professional Advisory Committee seeks advice regarding include 

the following:
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• What actions do you recommend that the district consider to improve cash flow to 

not experience a cash crunch in the near term and to be able to continue with a 
Proposition 218 process successfully;

• What actions do you recommend that the district consider to improve cash flow to 
be creditworthy to obtain reasonable cost financing for future capital projects in 

the near and middle term? 

• What amount of cash reserves is reasonable for a district our size for: (a) repair 

and replacement of physical infrastructure (Borrego lies in the most active 
earthquake zone in the United States); (b) rate stabilization reserve; and (c) 

working capital reserve?  

• What strategic approaches do you recommend that the district explore, and their 

potential cost, to more affordably address the overdraft of the basin?

RFQ Response: Please respond with: (a) a 1-3 pp. (not including exhibits e.g. of 

resume or capabilities statement, etc.) cost proposal for providing advice to the district 
on any one or more of the above “advice requested” questions; (b) an optional additional 

cost for you to provide any additional advice you deem important for the district to 
consider at this time; (c) a list of any documents and need for access to district staff time 

that you may require in order to develop this timely advice; and (d) an estimate of the 
date by which your advice can be delivered to the district in draft form for discussion 

purposes. 

RFQ Due Date: Your response is due by 2:00 PM Pacific Time, Friday, February 11, 

2011, by email to diana[at]borregowd[dot]org.

Selection Process: The Professional Advisory Committee has been tasked with 

overseeing the identification and recommendation of advisors to the district. Any 
questions should be addressed to Director Lyle Brecht at 410.963.8680 (cell) or LBrecht

[at]gmail[dot]com. 
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Motion 2011-02-01: For the board to authorize the Professional Advisory Committee (PAC) to 
retain outside counsel, auditors, and other qualified advisors for the purposes of developing due 
diligence related to the districtʼs water credits purchase program and how this program may be 
improved to meet the development needs of Valley. The board further authorizes the PAC to 
spend not-more-than $__________ on this endeavor without additional board approval.

Rationale: To date, the district has spent more than $948,000 in cash reserves for the purchase 
of water credits and has either obligated or is contemplating the expenditure of another 
$6,500,000 in principal and interest payments for the purchase of agricultural lands for the 
purpose of creating water credits that would be purchased by developers to obtain connections 
to the BWD system.1  Presently BWD no longer has the funds to purchase agricultural lands for 
the purpose of creating water credits that can be purchased by developers. This puts an 
automatic, but unanticipated and unintended constraint on future development in the Valley

Since FY 2007, the district has spent approximately $675,267 in payments to Stradling, Yocca, 
Carlson, Rauth, the districtʼs counsel. Yet, despite all this legal work for the district, many of the 
substantive California water law questions that impact the district's strategy to address overdraft 
of the basin and that pertain to underlying assumptions related to the use of water credits for 
development in the Valley appear to have not been sufficiently answered. For example, the 
district, through its water credits purchase program has put itself in the middle of providing the 
necessary water credits for use by developers. Thus, development in the Valley is limited by the 
districtʼs ability to consummate the purchase of farmland for the creation of new water credits. 
Some legal questions related to improving the current water credits purchase program (e.g. 
paygo program) include, but are not limited to the following:

• Does California State law prohibit the overdraft of a basin and if so, who is empowered to 
enforce the state statute? 

• Are there any state or federal agencies that oversee the overdraft of a basin and what if any 
power do they have to correct the matter?

• Are there any public rights or other doctrines that can be pressed to restrict over-drafting?  Do 
pumpers with water rights have an unobstructed right to withdrawal any amount of water 
when a basin is in overdraft?

• Is there any regulation(s) requiring that overlyers be metered?  By what process would a local 
water district require all basin pumpers be metered? 

MOTION 2011-02-01! Page 1 of 2
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• Who can apply a pump tax or replenishment fee and by what authority? 

• Is a court-determined rights determination process, voluntary or court ordered, the best 
solution to the overdraft of a basin with a small number of pumpers?

• Does the State Park, which surrounds and is part of the basin, have any power to control 
overdraft if it adversely affects the flora and fauna within the Parkʼs boundaries?

• There is some possibility in the future to import water to the basin. What are the legal 
consequences of becoming a replenishment basin?

• Are there statutory or regulatory considerations if the basin were used for storage of water for 
another entity?

Additionally, respondents to the Cocopah due diligence RFP authorized by the board at its 
January 26, 2011 meeting and to the RFQ approved by the PAC on February 1, 2011 in 
response to board direction at its January 26, 2011 meeting, have identified additional due 
diligence requirements related to the districtʼs water credits purchase program including, but not 
limited to the following economic and legal questions:

• Has adequate accounting for where the cash came from for purchasing land i.e. either water 
or sewer reserves and ID/SA fund to create water credits been completed?

• Were requirements for public notice of a potential rate increase followed for the purchase of 
land to create water credits requiring obligations of outside debt on the part of the district?

• Is the purchase of land to bank water credits by the district for its own account for resale at a 
profit allowable under California law? That is, can or should the district be a market maker for 
what may appear to be a speculative financial instrument if it is held for future resale?

• Is the purchase of agricultural land by the district for the purpose of fallowing and the creation 
of water credits consistent with California water law in an overdraft basin where water rights 
for withdrawals have not been established?

• Does the purchase of agricultural land by the district for the purpose of fallowing and the 
creation of water credits consistent with an economically and legally-based strategy for 
dealing with the overdraft of the basin and encouraging development in the Valley?

In summary, the advice the district has received in its RFP and RFQ processes to date is that 
the district, due to economic and legal considerations,  must answer the above questions in a 
timely fashion before continuing with its present policy of addressing the overdraft through a 
land purchase program for the purpose of creating water credits needed by developers in the 
Valley to obtain connections to the BWD system.
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Motion 2011-02-02: For the board to authorize the Professional Advisory Committee (PAC) to 
retain financial, management, engineering, and other qualified advisors, as well as advice from 
outside counsel and the districtʼs auditors, for the purposes of developing a financial model and 
funding strategy to address the districtʼs present financial condition and timely need for 
additional funds for capital projects. The board further authorizes the PAC to spend not-more-
than $__________ on this endeavor without additional board approval.

Rationale: To date, the district appears to have spent or will have spent by FY 2011 ending 
June 30, 2011 approximately $7,000,000 of its $7,400,000 cash reserves available at the start 
of FY 2008 on expenditures proposed by the previous general manager (GM), and authorized 
by the previous board.1 Additionally, the district has been either obligated or is contemplating the 
expenditure of another $7,500,000 in principal and interest payments and potential operating 
losses from decisions made by the previous GM and board.2 

It appears that this expenditure of the districtʼs cash reserves and potential future obligations of 
the district are presently unfunded. That is, under the districtʼs present operating cost structure it 
is unlikely that reserves for repair and replacement of infrastructure, rate stabilization, and 
working capital needs can be replaced in a timely fashion or that future anticipated debt 
obligations can be sufficiently funded from cash flow from operating revenues. 

In stark contrast to the financial condition of the district at the start of FY 2008, the district is also 
no longer creditworthy for borrowings from the public capital markets and no longer has a 
margin of safety in sufficient reserves for operations.3 The only recourse for the district, given its 
present financial condition, is to explore additional revenue sources, including but not limited to: 
increases in water and sewer rates, a special tax on undeveloped parcels, a surcharge for 
energy costs, a parks fee for all property owners, etc. Such financial modeling must also include 
a thorough revue of the O&M budget, a detailed CIP budget that includes a 5-10-year capital 
improvements needs, necessary capital for basin overdraft planning, and projections of 
adequate cash flow to cover additional debt required by the proposed capital program.

MOTION 2011-02-02! Page 1 of 1
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1 Based on current the cash flow forecast regarding expenditures approved by the past board and its GM 
through FY 2011 year ending June 30, 2011. Payments to the previous GM during this period include 
approximately $603,321 salary; $114,237 pension; and $40,068 medical, totaling $757,626 for period.

2 This figure includes: (a) principal and interest of approximately $2.5 million over the term of the Viking 
Ranch agreement and an estimated $4.0 million over the term of the Cocopah Nurseries agreement, 
assuming this is funded with debt financing, and (b) an estimated $1,000,000 in operating losses from the 
20-year lease agreement for the districtʼs involvement with the Club Circle golf course.

3 See Memorandum dated 01/19/11 and email to the district dated 01/25/11 from Dennis Ciocca at Stern 
Brothers, the districtʼs investment bankers.
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RESOLUTION NO. 2011-02-01 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
BORREGO WATER DISTRICT REVISING THE SCHEDULE 
OF REGULAR MEETINGS 

WHEREAS, on June 14, 1983, this Board of Directors adopted Ordinance No. 83-1 
establishing the Administrative Code of the Borrego Water District (“Administrative Code”) 
pursuant to the specific and implied grants of authority in Division 13, commencing with Section 
34000, of the Water Code of the State of California to serve in part as the Bylaws of the Borrego 
Water District as required by Section 35300 et seq. of the Water Code; and 

WHEREAS, Section 4.1.1 of the Administrative Code as adopted by Ordinance No. 83-1 
established a schedule of the regular meetings of the Board of Directors; and  

WHEREAS, on February 28, 2007 the Board of Directors adopted Ordinance No. 07-1 
amending Section 4.1.1 of the Administrative Code governing the date and time of regular meetings 
of the Board of Directors to read: “4.1.1  Regular Meetings

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 2007-2-1 on February 28, 2007 
setting its regular board meetings at 9:00 a.m. on the second and fourth Wednesday of each month. 

.  Regular meetings of the Board shall be 
held pursuant to such schedule as the Board may adopt by Resolution from time to time.  In the event 
the regular meeting date falls on a holiday designated in Section 6700 of the Government Code, a 
regular meeting of the Board of the cancellation of a regular meeting or meetings may be made by a 
majority vote of the members of the Board at least fifteen (15) days prior to the change or 
cancellation.  A determination to change or cancel a regular meeting must be made at a regular or 
special meeting of the Board;” and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors Adopted Resolution 2008-9-03 on September 24, 2008 
setting its regular board meetings at 9:15 a.m. on the fourth Wednesday of every month. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution 2009-09-03 on September 16, 2009 
setting its regular meetings for the months of October, November and December 2009 on the third 
Wednesday of such months. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 07-1, the Board of Directors desires to revise the 
schedule for its regular meetings. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Borrego Water District does hereby 
resolve, determine and order as follows: 

Section 1. The Board of Directors of the Borrego Water District shall hold its regular 
meetings at 9:00 a.m. on the fourth Wednesday of each month.   

 
  

 
ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 15th day of February, 2011. 

              
President of the Board of Directors of Borrego Water 
District 

Agenda page 48



ATTEST: 

       
Secretary of the Board of Directors 
of Borrego Water District 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

)  ss. 
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

I, Marshal Brecht, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Borrego Water District, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of said 
District at a regular meeting held on the 15th  day of February, 2011, and that it was so adopted by the 
following vote: 

AYES:  DIRECTORS:  

NOES:  DIRECTORS:   

ABSENT: DIRECTORS:   

ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:   

              
Secretary of the Board of Directors of Borrego Water 
District 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
)  ss. 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO ) 

I, Marshal Brecht, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Borrego Water District, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of RESOLUTION NO. 
2011-02-01, of said Board, and that the same has not been amended or repealed. 

Dated:   

              
Secretary of the Board of Directors of Borrego Water 
District 
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